
 

 

AGENDA 
VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 
November 16, 2015 

442 N. Cedar Lake Road 
To Follow the Regular Board Meeting 

The Regular Board Meeting is 7:00 P.M. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

1. ROLL CALL 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

2.1 Approve the Minutes of the Committee of the Whole Meeting of November 2, 2015 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

4. COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
 

 Community Development  
 Clerk’s Office 
 Human Resources and Finance 

o Proposed Tax Levy  
o Risk Management Proposals 

 Public Works, Facilities and Capital Assets, and Engineering 
o Pavement Management Report Update Presentation 

 Special Events 
o Christmas Tree Lighting will be held on Friday, December 4, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. 

 Building and Zoning 
 Police 
 Administration 

o Route 53/120 Land Use Plan Summary 
o Management’s Overall Vision Evaluation (MOVE) Presentation 

 
5. SUGGESTED NEW TOPICS 

 
6. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
7. ADJOURN  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 









L:\FINANCE DEPARTMENT\MARTHA\Proposed Property Tax Levy\1 - AIS - Prop Tax Levy.doc 

 

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

TITLE: 2015 PROPOSED TAX LEVY  Agenda Item No. COTW 
 

Executive Summary
 
Per 35 ILCS 200/18-60 not less than 20 days prior to the adoption of the aggregate levy, the corporate 
authorities of each taxing district shall determine the amounts of money estimated to be necessary to be 
raised by taxation for that year upon the taxable property in its district.  Staff recommended an estimated 
levy of $3,668,463, an increase of 3.24% over last year’s extension. The estimate was presented at the 
November 2nd Board meeting.  
 
Staff is recommending a Proposed levy equal to the Estimated levy of $3,668,463 to capture the entire 
benefit of the CPI growth (0.80%) and any new construction EAV, however, the limiting allowable 
extension is estimated to be only $3,612,310 once the Road and Bridge levy is reduced by the County.   
 
The $3,612,310 amount will result in a total increase of 1.66% or $58,848 over the 2014 Actual Extension 
of which only 0.80% or $28,428 affects current residents (CPI).  The remaining 0.86% or $30,420 will be 
from new construction and property that are new to the tax rolls. 
 

 Recommended Action
 
Discuss and Provide Additional Staff Guidance for Future Board Action. 

Committee: Human Resources & Finance Meeting Date: 11/16/15 

Lead Department:  Administration Presenter: Shane D. Johnson, AVA/Director of Finance 

Item Budgeted:     -  Yes     -  No     X  N/A 

 
If amount requested is over budget, a detailed 
explanation of what account(s) the overage will be 
charged to will be provided in the Executive 
Summary or attached detail. 

 

Account(s) Budget Expenditure

Grand Total $0.00 $0.00

Under
Over

Request is over/under budget:
-
-

 



Village of Round Lake - Proposed 2015 Tax Levy Collected in Fiscal Year 2017 Proposed Tax Levy

2014 2015

Information Information Increase % Notes 

New Property EAV $1,436,534 $2,000,000 $563,466 39.22%

Existing Property EAV $241,343,377 $235,496,514 ($5,846,863) (2.42%) Lowered 3% from the total $242,779,911

Total EAV $242,779,911 $237,496,514 ($5,283,397) (2.18%)

Consumer Price Index (CPI) 1.50% 0.80%

2014 2015 2015 2014

Actual Proposed Adjusted Maximum Limiting Estimated Year

Description Extension Levy Levy Amount Rates Rates Rates Proposed Levy Notes

Police Pension $450,002 $456,195 $456,195 N/A N/A 0.1921 0.1854 State actuarial valuation amount of $456,195

IMRF $99,100 $100,500 $100,500 N/A N/A 0.0423 0.0408 General Fund budget of $100,500 

Police Protection $1,175,001 $1,175,001 $1,178,848 1,424,979      0.60000 0.4947 0.4840 Kept same as prior year

Street & Bridge (3) $56,983 $120,000 $60,000 237,497         0.10000 0.0505 0.0235 Last years levy $112,271, increased to $120,000

Garbage $362,271 $371,192 $371,192 474,993         0.20000 0.1563 0.1492 Budget of $971,192 less $600,000 user fees: $371,192

Civil Defense $4,574 $4,572 $4,572 4,572             $.25 * Pop 0.0019 0.0019 Population of 18,289 x $0.25

Liability Insurance $155,675 $173,731 $173,731 N/A N/A 0.0732 0.0641 General Fund budget of $173,731

Audit $20,627 $20,022 $20,022 N/A N/A 0.0084 0.0085 General Fund budget of $20,022

Social Security $228,177 $246,200 $246,200 N/A N/A 0.1037 0.0940 General Fund budget of $246,200 

General Corporate $1,001,052 $1,001,050 $1,001,050 1,039,047      0.43750 0.4215 0.4123 Kept same as prior year

$3,553,463 $3,668,463 $3,612,310 1.5446 1.4637

Maximum Allowable Extension to Adjusted Levy $0

Estimated Levy Dollar Increase: $115,000.27 2015 Est. Limiting Rate (2): 1.5210 0.0573 Estimated Rate Change from Prior Year

Percent Increase (1): 3.24% Max. Allowable Ext. (4): $3,612,310 $58,848 Dollar change between max allowed  & last years extension

Est. Adjustment needed (4): ($56,153) 1.66% Estimated 2015 levy from 2014 extension percent change

(1) Public Hearing Required if greater then 5%.

(2) Limiting rate calculation: (Last Years Extension *  Inflation) / (Total EAV - New Property - Annexations + Disconnections).

(3) Due to county calculations the final actual extension for Street & Bridge tax is typically 1/2 the levy amount. 

(4) Estimated levy higher then the maximum allowable to capture all revenues. Adjustments to levy are done

     when county completes preliminary estimated extensions.

2015

2014 2015 Dollar Percent Estimated 2017

Fund Actual Adjusted Change Change Collections Forecast Difference

General Fund $3,103,460 $3,156,115 $52,655 1.70% $3,124,554 $3,088,769 $35,785

Police Pension $450,002 $456,195 $6,193 1.38% $451,633 $453,914 ($2,281)

Total $3,553,463 $3,612,310 $58,847 1.66% $3,576,187 $3,542,683 $33,504



VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE

HISTORICAL INFORMATION

HISTORICAL EQUALIZED ASSESSED VALUATION NEW CONSTRUCTION

Levy Dollar Dollar Percent Levy Dollar Dollar Percent

Year Amount Change Change Year Amount Change Change

2000 $75,241,760 $11,686,401 18.39% 2000 $9,465,549 $4,613,740 95.09%

2001 $93,873,302 $18,631,542 24.76% 2001 $11,660,335 $2,194,786 23.19%

2002 $122,024,880 $28,151,578 29.99% 2002 $19,653,945 $7,993,610 68.55%

2003 $177,037,387 $55,012,507 45.08% 2003 $33,373,505 $13,719,560 69.81%

2004 $243,920,458 $66,883,071 37.78% 2004 $55,538,267 $22,164,762 66.41%

2005 $319,702,385 $75,781,927 31.07% 2005 $57,068,520 $1,530,253 2.76%

2006 $377,475,750 $57,773,365 18.07% 2006 $38,540,064 ($18,528,456) (32.47%)

2007 $407,703,238 $30,227,488 8.01% 2007 $14,532,309 ($24,007,755) (62.29%)

2008 $421,556,835 $13,853,597 3.40% 2008 $3,153,583 ($11,378,726) (78.30%)

2009 $404,464,351 ($17,092,484) (4.05%) 2009 $2,548,079 ($605,504) (19.20%)

2010 $363,428,091 ($41,036,260) (10.15%) 2010 $1,329,445 ($1,218,634) (47.83%)

2011 $321,967,538 ($41,460,553) (11.41%) 2011 $969,459 ($359,986) (27.08%)

2012 $275,111,595 ($46,855,943) (14.55%) 2012 $806,734 ($162,725) (16.79%)

2013 $252,282,627 ($22,828,968) (7.09%) 2013 $762,471 ($44,263) (4.57%)

2014 $242,779,911 ($9,502,716) (3.77%) 2014 $1,436,534 $674,063 88.41%

2015 $235,496,514 ($7,283,397) (3.00%) 2015 $2,000,000 $563,466 39.22%

TAX RATES FINAL EXTENSION

Levy Rate Percent Levy Dollar Dollar Percent

Year Rate Change Change Year Amount Change Change

2000 1.342 (0.026) (1.90%) 2000 $1,003,702 $221,430 28.31%

2001 1.256 (0.086) (6.41%) 2001 $1,166,501 $162,799 16.22%

2002 1.160 (0.096) (7.64%) 2002 $1,395,444 $228,943 19.63%

2003 1.005 (0.155) (13.36%) 2003 $1,750,776 $355,332 25.46%

2004 0.928 (0.077) (7.66%) 2004 $2,229,631 $478,855 27.35%

2005 0.855 (0.073) (7.87%) 2005 $2,697,113 $467,482 20.97%

2006 0.835 (0.020) (2.34%) 2006 $3,111,004 $413,891 15.35%

2007 0.824 (0.011) (1.32%) 2007 $3,322,233 $211,229 6.79%

2008 0.827 0.003 0.36% 2008 $3,486,275 $164,042 4.94%

2009 0.869 0.042 5.08% 2009 $3,514,795 $28,520 0.82%

2010 0.997 0.128 14.73% 2010 $3,623,378 $108,583 3.09%

2011 1.071 0.074 7.42% 2011 $3,448,272 ($175,106) (4.83%)

2012 1.244 0.173 16.15% 2012 $3,422,388 ($25,884) (0.75%)

2013 1.386 0.142 11.41% 2013 $3,486,069 $63,681 1.86%

2014 1.464 0.078 5.60% 2014 $3,553,463 $67,393 1.93%

2015 1.521 0.057 3.92% 2015 $3,612,310 $58,847 1.66%



VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE

HISTORICAL INFORMATION

GENERAL LEVY POLICE PENSION LEVY

Levy Dollar Dollar Percent Levy Dollar Dollar Percent

Year Amount Change Change Year Amount Change Change

2000 $890,992 - - 2000 $112,710 - -

2001 $1,047,345 $156,353 17.55% 2001 $119,156 $6,446 5.72%

2002 $1,253,933 $206,588 19.72% 2002 $141,511 $22,355 18.76%

2003 $1,579,037 $325,104 25.93% 2003 $171,739 $30,228 21.36%

2004 $2,064,866 $485,829 30.77% 2004 $164,765 ($6,974) (4.06%)

2005 $2,473,686 $408,820 19.80% 2005 $223,427 $58,662 35.60%

2006 $2,865,682 $391,996 15.85% 2006 $245,322 $21,895 9.80%

2007 $3,045,602 $179,920 6.28% 2007 $276,631 $31,309 12.76%

2008 $3,245,984 $200,382 6.58% 2008 $240,291 ($36,340) (13.14%)

2009 $3,217,080 ($28,904) (0.89%) 2009 $297,715 $57,424 23.90%

2010 $3,307,196 $90,116 2.80% 2010 $316,182 $18,467 6.20%

2011 $3,052,252 ($254,944) (7.71%) 2011 $396,020 $79,838 25.25%

2012 $2,993,214 ($59,038) (1.93%) 2012 $429,174 $33,154 8.37%

2013 $2,985,544 ($7,670) (0.26%) 2013 $500,525 $71,351 16.63%

2014 $3,103,460 $117,916 3.95% 2014 $450,002 ($50,523) (10.09%)

2015 $3,156,115 $52,655 1.70% 2015 $456,195 $6,193 1.38%

OTHER INFORMATION

Police Pension

CPI For Levy as a % Taxes as a % of 

Tax Levy of General Fund Revenues

Fiscal CPI Tax Levy Dec. thru Overall Dollar Percent of 

Year End Year Year Dec. CPI Extension Amount Total Revenues

2002 1999 2000 2.70% 11.23% $785,683 23.30%

2003 2000 2001 3.40% 10.21% $956,969 21.69%

2004 2001 2002 1.60% 10.14% $1,163,490 25.14%

2005 2002 2003 2.40% 9.81% $1,430,078 25.35%

2006 2003 2004 1.90% 7.39% $1,584,478 28.62%

2007 2004 2005 3.30% 8.28% $2,350,090 36.49%

2008 2005 2006 3.40% 7.89% $2,839,983 36.69%

2009 2006 2007 2.50% 8.33% $3,029,873 41.24%

2010 2007 2008 4.10% 6.89% $3,233,625 52.83%

2011 2008 2009 0.10% 8.47% $3,205,781 49.00%

2012 2009 2010 2.70% 8.73% $3,283,408 49.18%

2013 2010 2011 1.50% 11.48% $3,041,331 43.17%

2014 2011 2012 3.00% 12.54% $2,974,339 42.50%

2015 2012 2013 1.70% 14.36% $2,915,171 40.96%

2016 2013 2014 1.50% 12.66% $3,068,769 42.66% Budget

2017 2014 2015 0.80% 12.63% $3,088,769 42.62% Forecast



VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE

HISTORICAL INFORMATION

FINAL EXTENSION

Portion of Portion of Total

Levy Dollar Increase Increase Dollar Percent

Year Extension from CPI % from Growth % Change Change

2000 $1,003,702 $21,121 2.70% $200,309 25.61% $221,430 28.31%

2001 $1,166,501 $34,126 3.40% $128,673 12.82% $162,799 16.22%

2002 $1,395,444 $18,664 1.60% $210,279 18.03% $228,943 19.63%

2003 $1,750,776 $33,491 2.40% $321,842 23.06% $355,332 25.46%

2004 $2,229,631 $33,265 1.90% $445,590 25.45% $478,855 27.35%

2005 $2,697,113 $73,578 3.30% $393,904 17.67% $467,482 20.97%

2006 $3,111,004 $91,702 3.40% $322,189 11.95% $413,891 15.35%

2007 $3,322,233 $77,775 2.50% $133,454 4.29% $211,229 6.79%

2008 $3,486,275 $136,212 4.10% $27,831 0.84% $164,042 4.94%

2009 $3,514,795 $3,486 0.10% $25,034 0.72% $28,520 0.82%

2010 $3,623,378 $94,899 2.70% $13,683 0.39% $108,583 3.09%

2011 $3,448,272 - - - - ($175,106) (4.83%)

2012 $3,422,388 - - - - ($25,884) (0.75%)

2013 $3,486,069 $58,181 1.70% $5,501 0.16% $63,681 1.86%

2014 $3,553,463 $52,291 1.50% $15,102 0.43% $67,393 1.93%

2015 $3,612,310 $28,428 0.80% $30,420 0.86% $58,847 1.66%

GENERAL FUND REVENUES & TRANSFERS IN GENERAL FUND EXPENSES & TRANSFERS OUT

Fiscal Dollar Dollar Percent Fiscal Dollar Dollar Percent

Year End Amount Change Change Year End Amount Change Change

2001 $2,694,615 - - 2001 $2,652,268 - -
2002 $3,371,406 $676,791 25.12% 2002 $3,082,691 $430,423 16.23%
2003 $4,411,068 $1,039,662 30.84% 2003 $3,675,653 $592,962 19.24%
2004 $4,628,490 $217,422 4.93% 2004 $4,326,895 $651,242 17.72%
2005 $5,641,238 $1,012,748 21.88% 2005 $5,178,589 $851,694 19.68%
2006 $5,535,669 ($105,569) (1.87%) 2006 $5,095,161 ($83,428) (1.61%)
2007 $6,439,555 $903,886 16.33% 2007 $6,488,071 $1,392,910 27.34%
2008 $7,741,519 $1,301,964 20.22% 2008 $6,978,994 $490,923 7.57%
2009 $7,346,617 ($394,902) (5.10%) 2009 $6,181,698 ($797,296) (11.42%)
2010 $6,120,939 ($1,225,678) (16.68%) 2010 $6,432,694 $250,996 4.06%
2011 $6,543,072 $422,133 6.90% 2011 $6,194,942 ($237,752) (3.70%)
2012 $6,675,773 $132,701 2.03% 2012 $5,909,554 ($285,389) (4.61%)
2013 $7,044,609 $368,836 5.52% 2013 $5,961,274 $51,720 0.88%
2014 $6,998,599 ($46,010) (0.65%) 2014 $7,483,364 $1,522,090 25.53%
2015 $7,116,530 $117,931 1.69% 2015 $7,143,914 ($339,451) (4.54%)

2016 (A) $7,194,059 $77,529 1.09% 2016 $8,089,743 $945,829 13.24%
2017 (B) $7,247,984 $53,925 0.75% 2017 $8,179,761 $90,018 1.11%

(A) - 2016 Budget amount. (B) - 2017 Forecasted amount.

Maximum Actual Amount

Levy Extension Extension Not

Year Amount Amount Captured

2011 $3,677,729 $3,448,272 $229,456

2012 $3,788,061 $3,422,388 $365,672

2013 $3,852,458 $3,486,069 $366,388

2014 $3,910,244 $3,553,463 $356,782

$1,318,299



 

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

TITLE: CALENDAR YEAR 2016 RISK MANAGEMENT  PROPOSALS  Agenda Item No. COTW 
 

Executive Summary
 
West Insurance Agency, for calendar year 2016, again sent out risk management information to seven (7) 
vendors. Overall, the risk management premium increased 13.16% from the previous year.  The $204,475 
total premium for 2016 is still less than the high of $205,659 for the 2011 coverage year.  
 
The vendors West Insurance Agency and staff are recommending are the same as last year: Trident - 
Package Program: Commercial, Auto, Crime, Etc.; The Illinois Public Risk Fund (IPRF) – Workers 
Compensation; and Liberty Mutual Surety - Public Officials Bonds.  
 
West Insurance Agency representatives, Brad West and Geoff Raef, will be in attendance at the COTW 
meeting for a brief presentation and to answer any questions.  Should the Village Board decide to move 
forward with the three vendors above, resolutions will be provided for each insurance type along with 
proposed insurance binders at the next Board meeting. 
 
Attached are brief historical and 2016 calendar year coverage information, a 2016 property/casualty 
insurance summary, IPRF grant information, and information about Cyber Liability coverage. 
 
 Recommended Action
 
Discuss and Provide Additional Staff Guidance, if Necessary, for Future Board Action. 

Committee: Human Resources & Finance Meeting Date: 11/16/15 

Lead Department:  Administration Presenter: Shane D. Johnson, AVA/Director of Finance 

Item Budgeted:     X  Yes      -   No       -  N/A 

 
If amount requested is over budget, a detailed 
explanation of what account(s) the overage will be 
charged to will be provided in the Executive 
Summary or attached detail. 

 

Note:  

Account(s) Budget Expenditure
01-20-75-77519 $15,000.00
Item Requested $158,731.00 $153,356.25
Y-T-D Actual $1,465.50
Amount Encumbered $0.00
   Total $173,731.00 $154,821.75

50-60-75-77519 $5,000.00
Item Requested $52,910.00 $51,118.75
Y-T-D Actual $1,465.50
Amount Encumbered $0.00
   Total $57,910.00 $52,584.25

Grand Total $231,641.00 $207,406.00

Under
Over

Request is over/under budget:
$24,235.00

-

 



1 
 

Historical Information 
 
In the past, from 1981 through calendar year 2011, the village participated in the Illinois Municipal 
League Risk Management association (IMLRMA) for professional risk management services. For the 
calendar year 2012 coverage year, the Village selected West Insurance Agency as the risk management 
broker for the Village, and has been the Village’s risk management broker since that time. 
 
Listed below is the annual premium amount for the last ten years and the proposed premium for calendar 
year 2016. 
 

Fiscal Calendar Contribution Increase Percent  
Year Year Covered Amount (Decrease) Inc. (Dec.) 

2006 2006 $98,230.20 $7,176.29 7.88% 
2007 2007 $118,922.02 $20,691.82 21.06% 
2008 2008 $145,150.74 $26,228.72 22.06% 
2009 2009 $169,643.88 $24,493.14 16.87% 
2010 2010 $179,732.00 $10,088.12 5.95% 
2011 2011 $205,659.00 $25,927.00 14.43% 
2012 2012 $130,802.00 ($74,857.00) (36.40%) 
2013 2013 $145,598.00 $14,796.00 11.31% 
2014 2014 $164,114.00 $18,516.00 12.72% 
2015 2015 $180,692.00 $16,578.00 10.10% 
2016 2016 $204,475.00 $23,783.00 13.16% 

 
2016 Calendar Year Coverage 
 
West Insurance Agency, for calendar year 2016, again sent out information and received proposals from a 
number of different vendors. Besides the incumbents, which are listed on the 2016 Property/Casualty 
Insurance Summary attached, requests for proposals on the Village’s risk management program were also 
sent to Travelers, One Beacon, ICRMT, Brit Insurance, Glatfelter, and Scottsdale. 
 
Staff met with representatives from West Insurance Agency to review the proposals and to answer 
questions. The risk management package includes three main proposals; package policy (property, 
liability, crime, inland marine, excess), workers compensation, and public officials bonds.   
 
The table below lists the three main proposals and the premium change for each. 
 

2015 2016 Dollar Percent 
Description Premium Premium Variance Variance 

Workers Compensation $81,262 $90,871 $9,609  11.82%
Package Policy $97,758 $111,932 $14,174  14.50%
Public Officials Bonds $1,672 $1,672 $0  0.00%

  Total $180,692 $204,475 $23,783  13.16%

 
Overall, the risk management premium was also $7,167, 3.51% under the budget amount.  



2 
 

Trident 
Founded by the Argonaut Group in March 2000, Trident is committed to servicing the insurance and risk 
management needs of governmental entities throughout the United States. Trident Insurance Services 
primary focus is Public Entity Insurance. Their coverage forms and terms are tailored specifically for the 
public entity market segment.  
 
The Illinois Public Risk Fund 
The Illinois Public Risk Fund (IPRF) is a self-funded workers compensation pool for public entities that 
was established to provide a cost-effective alternative to escalating workers compensation premiums and 
related costs. Participating public entities have pooled their workers compensation exposures and 
controlled costs through a unified loss prevention and claims management program. Over 500 public 
entities and governmental agencies rely on IPRF. With over 26 years in the public entity market, IPRF has 
become Illinois' largest self-insured risk pool for workers compensation coverage. 
 
Liberty Mutual Surety 
Liberty Mutual Surety is the second largest surety writer in the U.S. that provides bid and supply, court, 
license & permit, miscellaneous, notary, probate, public official, and regulatory bonds, just to name a few.  
 
Should the Village Board decide to move forward with the three vendors above, resolutions will be 
provided for each insurance type along with proposed insurance binders at the next Board meeting. 
 
IPRF Grant 
 
The Village has also qualified for a grant through the IPRF in the amount of $6,373. 
 
Cyber Liability Coverage 
 
Cyber Liability coverage was estimated at a premium of $7,500.  Coverage is still subject to filling out an 
application and is not included in the estimated annual premium.  However, with the threat of cyber-
crimes at an all-time high these days, having this type of coverage should be discussed to see if the 
minimal premium costs could save the Village from significant dollar losses should a cyber-crime occur 
to the Village.   
 
Staffs also recommends executing a “contingent contract” with a credit monitoring service to have in 
place and ready to go should a breach occur.  This will allow the Village to simply “turn on” that contract 
at such a sensitive time, as opposed to scrambling around after a breach happens trying to get a contract in 
place, approved by the Board, and active.  Time is of the essence in such a situation.   
 





 
 

 

Insurance Proposal For 
 

 

 

Village of Round Lake  
 

 

 

12/31/2015 – 12/31/2016 

 

11/11/2015 

Presented By: 

Geoff Raef 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1225 Tri-State Parkway, Suite 500 

Gurnee, IL 60031 

Phone: (847) 623-0456 

Fax: (847) 623-5700 



 

Table of Contents 
Contact Information ...................................................................................................... 3 

About West’s Insurance Agency.................................................................................. 4 

Named Insured(s), Additional Interests, Mailing Address, Effective Date ............... 6 

Premium Payment Terms ............................................................................................. 7 

Commercial Property ........................................................................................................... 8 

Commercial Flood ................................................................................................................ 8 

Commercial Earthquake....................................................................................................... 8 

Inland Marine ........................................................................................................................ 9 

Crime ..................................................................................................................................... 9 

Business Automobile ..........................................................................................................10 

General Liability ..................................................................................................................11 

Law Enforcement Liability ..................................................................................................11 

Public Officials Liability and Employment Practices Liability ..........................................11 

Workers’ Compensation .....................................................................................................12 

Excess Liability ...................................................................................................................13 

Public Officials Bonds ........................................................................................................13 

Market Review .....................................................................................................................14 

Premium Summary...................................................................................................... 15 

A.M. Best Company Rating Information .................................................................... 16 

Final Audit Information ............................................................................................... 17 

 



Page 3 

Contact Information 

 
Client: Village of Round Lake  

 442 N. Cedar Lake Rd 

Round Lake, IL 60073 

 (847) 546-5400 

 (847) 546-5405 

 www.eroundlake.com 

 
 Daniel MacGillis, Mayor 

  

 
Steve Shields sshields@eroundlake.com 

Wayde Frerichs wfrerichs@eroundlake.com 

Shane Johnson sjohnson@eroundlake.com 

 
Broker: West’s Insurance Agency 

 1225 Tri-State Parkway, Suite 500 

 Gurnee, IL 60031 

 (847) 623-0456 

 (847) 623-5600 

 
 Geoff Raef 

 (708) 955-3527 

 geoff@westinsurance.com 

 
Brad West brad@westinsurance.com 

Gail O’Neill - CSR gail@westinsurance.com 

Jackie Russell - CSR jackie@westinsurance.com 

Louise Seliger – Work 
Comp Coach 

louise@westinsurance.com 

 



Page 4 

About West’s Insurance Agency 

 
 
Founded in 1929 by Bradford F. West, West’s Insurance is a fourth generation family-owned and 
operated independent insurance agency. Our primary office is located in Gurnee, IL, forty miles north of 
Chicago and fifty miles south of Milwaukee with a second location in Waukegan, IL by appointment only. 
 
We are a full-service insurance agency with a reputation for professionalism, expertise and customer 
service offering a wide variety of reliable and affordable insurance products with prominent insurance 
carriers.   
 
It is our hope to represent your interests in selecting insurance options. Our process includes defining 
your needs, identifying the appropriate products for your consideration, and then reviewing those 
products with you to provide a comprehensive insurance program. 
 
Our staff of professional, caring and conscientious people is here to help you. We also hope that you will 
use our web site as a resource to answer your insurance related questions, inquire about changes to an 
existing policy, or to obtain a quote. We look forward to hearing from you! 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Page 5 

Disclaimers 

 
Please Note The Following 

 
This proposal is for “illustration purposes only”.  Coverage is not bound and this is a summary of 
proposed coverages.  Once coverage is bound, please refer to the actual policies presented for specific 
terms, conditions, limitations and exclusions that will govern in the event of a loss.  Specimen copies of 
proposed policies are available for your review prior to the binding of coverage.   
 
In evaluating your exposures to loss, we have depended upon information provided by you.  If there are 
other areas that need to be evaluated prior to binding coverage, please bring this information to our 
attention.  Property values have been obtained from you and may not have been independently 
appraised. Please review your property values carefully. 
 
Should any of your exposures change after coverage is bound, such as new operations, hiring 
employees in additional states, buying additional property, etc. please let us know so that we may 
request appropriate adjustments from your insurance carrier. 
 
Higher limits of liability may be available and will be quoted on request. 
 



Page 6 

  

 

Named Insured(s), Additional Interests, Mailing Address, Effective Date 

 

 

Named Insured: Village of Round Lake  

Mailing Address: 442 N. Cedar Lake Road 

 Round Lake, IL 60073 

 12/31/2015 & 1/1/2016 

 

  



Page 7 

Premium Payment Terms 

 

Trident Annual 

IPRF Annual  

Liberty Surety Annual 

 

 

 

Acceptance of Proposal and any modifications to the proposal, Payment Terms and Contingencies: 

 

Signature: Insured:  Village of Round Lake  

 

   

 By:  

   

   

 Date: 

 

 

 

Your preferred method of delivery of Policies by West’s Insurance Agency 

 Email  Mail  Fax 

 

 

Your preferred method of delivery of all other items by West’s Insurance Agency. 

 Email  Mail  Fax 

 



Page 8 

Commercial Property 

Trident 

 

Property Limits of Insurance 

Blanket Building limit $23,595,379 

Blanket Contents limit $1,925,869 

Total Blanket Property limit $25,579,025 

Property Deductible $2,500 
 

 

See Attached Statement of Values Spreadsheet for a list of all properties including 
insured buildings and business personal property limits.  Also attached is a copy of 
Trident’s property enhancement endorsement which includes additional coverages and 
limits not specifically identified in my proposal. 

 

Commercial Flood 

Trident 

 

Per Occurrence Limit $1,000,000  

Per Premises/Per Occurrence Deductible $50,000 

 

 

Commercial Earthquake 

Trident 

 

Per Occurrence Limit $1,000,000 

Per Premises/Per Occurrence Deductible $50,000 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 9 

Inland Marine 

Trident 

 

 
Mobile Equipment Limits of Insurance 

Emergency Services Equipment $433,660 

Hired, Leased or Borrowed Equipment $100,000 

Street/Highway Equipment $733,000 

Miscellaneous Unscheduled Equipment $170,374 

Miscellaneous Scheduled Equipment $537,080 

Mobile Equipment Deductible $500 

 

  
See attached Mobile Equipment Schedule for a list of all scheduled equipment. 

 

Crime 

Trident 

 

Coverage 

Coverage Limit 
Deductible 

(Per Occurrence) 

Public Employee 
Dishonesty 

$500,000 $2,500 

Forgery or Alteration $500,000 $2,500 

Theft, 
Disappearance & 
Destruction - Inside 
the Premises 

$50,000 $2,500 

Theft, 
Disappearance & 
Destruction - 
Outside the 
Premises 

$50,000 $2,500 

 

 



Page 10 

Business Automobile 

Trident 

 

 

Coverage Autos Covered Limits of Liability 

Liability Insurance 

CSL Each Accident 

Bodily Injury and 

Property Damages 

1-Any Auto  

 

$1,000,000 

 

Medical Payments 

Each Person 

2-All Owned Autos 

 

$5,000 

Uninsured/Underinsured 
Motorists 

CSL Each Accident 

2-All Owned Autos 

 

$100,000/$100,000 

Hired /Borrowed Car Liability  $1,000,000 

Non Owned Auto Liability  $1,000,000 

Comprehensive/collision 
Deductible 

 $1,000/$1,000 

 
 
See Automobile Schedule for a list of all 44 vehicles quoted. 

 
 

 



Page 11 

General Liability 

Trident 

 

Coverages Limits 

Each Occurrence $1,000,000 

Personal Injury & Advertising Injury $1,000,000 

General Aggregate $3,000,000 

Products/Completed Operations Aggregate $3,000,000 

Damage to Rented Premises – Per Occurrence $100,000 

Property Damage Deductible -  N/A 

Bodily Injury Deductible -  N/A 

Public Water Liability  Included 

Sewer Liability  Included 

Pollution Liability  Limited to Water Utility only 

Employee Benefits Liability  $1,000,000 

Aggregate Limit $1,000,000 

EBL Deductible $1,000 

 

Law Enforcement Liability  

Trident 

Per Wrongful Act $1,000,000 

Per Wrongful Act Aggregate $1,000,000 

Deductible $2,500 

Public Officials Liability and Employment Practices Liability  

Trident 

Per Wrongful Act $1,000,000 

Annual Aggregate $1,000,000 

POL Deductible $2,500 

Retroactive Date 12/31/2006 

EPL – Per Related Wrongful Act $1,000,000 

EPL – Aggregate $1,000,000 

EPL Deductible $10,000 

Retroactive Date  12/31/2006 

 



Page 12 

Workers’ Compensation 

Illinois Public Risk Fund (IPRF) 

 

 

 

Loc 

# 

State Description of 
Classification 

Code Est. Annual 
Payroll 

Rate Estimated 
Annual Premium 

1 IL Waterworks Operation 7520 132,849 3.361 $4,465 

1 IL Police Officers & Drivers 7720 2,146,565 2.186 $46,924 

1 IL Clerical 8810 804,120 .136 $1,094 

1 IL Street Maintenance 5506 365,135 7.340 $26,801 

1 IL Sewage Disposal 7580 58,613 2.852 $1,672 

1 IL Municipal Employee 9410 184,564 3.938 $7,268 

Coverages Limits 

Coverage A – Workers’ Compensation Statutory 

Coverage B – Employers’ Liability  

Each Accident – Bodily Injury by Accident $3,000,000 

Policy Limit – Bodily Injury by Disease $3,000,000 

Each Employee – Bodily Injury by Disease $3,000,000 



Page 13 

Excess Liability  

Trident 

 

Coverages Limits  

Limit of Liability $10,000,000 Each Occurrence 

Retained Limit N/A  

First Dollar Defense Yes  

 

Underlying Insurance 

Type of Insurance Insurance Carrier 
Policy Eff 
Date 

Limits 

Auto Liability Trident 12/31/15 $1,000,000 

General Liability Trident 12/31/15 $1,000,000 

EBL Trident 12/31/15 $1,000,000 

POL Trident 12/31/15 $1,000,000 

EPL Trident 12/31/15 $1,000,000 

Law Liability Trident 12/31/15 $1,000,000 

 

Public Officials Bonds 

Liberty Surety 

 

Position Principal Amount 

Village President Daniel MacGillis $50,000 

Village Clerk Patricia Blauvelt $50,000 

Village Administrator Steven Shields $50,000 

Village Finance Officer Shane Johnson $500,000 

Village Treasurer Shane Johnson $500,000 

Deputy Clerk Martha Koechig $5,000 

Fire & Police 
Commissioner 

Richard Crane $50,000 

Fire & Police 
Commissioner 

Art Weber $50,000 

Fire & Police 
Commissioner 

James Retis $50,000 



Page 14 

 

Market Review  

Village of Round Lake  
 

Carrier 

 

 

Coverages Carrier Position 

• Quoted 

• Declined 

• Indication 

• Verbal Quote 

Trident Commercial Package, Excess Liability Quoted 

IPRF Workers Compensation Quoted 

ICRMT Commercial Package, Workers 

Compensation, Excess Liability  

Quote pending 

Travelers Commercial Package, Workers 

Compensation, Excess Liability  

Quoted 

Glatfelter Commercial Package, Excess Liability  Decline 

One Beacon Commercial Package, Excess Liability Quoted 

Brit Insurance Commercial Package, Excess Liability Decline 

  



Page 15 

Premium Summary 

Named Insured: Village of Round Lake  
 

Coverage Insurance Carrier A.M. Best 
Rating 

Proposed 
Renewal 
Premium 

Prior Year 
Premium 

Commercial 
Property/Inland 

Marine 

Trident A $31,065 $28,473 

General Liability Trident A $11,106 $9,223 

Business Automobile Trident A $24,152 $19,437 

Law Enforcement 
Liability 

Trident A $21,916 $19,286 

Public Officials 
Liability/Employment 

Practices Liability 

Trident A $4,752 $4,376 

Excess Liability Trident A $18,565 $16,587 

Crime Trident A $376 $376 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

Illinois Public Risk Fund 
(IPRF) 

NR $90,871 $81,262 

Public Officials 
Bonds 

Liberty Mutual A $1,672 $1,672 

Total Estimated 
Premium 

  $204,475 $180,692 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 



Page 16 

A.M. Best Company Rating Information 

 
A.M. Best's Financial Strength Rating is an independent opinion, based on a comprehensive 
quantitative and qualitative evaluation, of a company's balance sheet strength, operating performance 
and business profile.  The Best’s rating for the companies we are including in this proposal are: 
 
As professional agents/brokers it has long been our established policy to make every effort to deal 

only with companies having a Best’s Rating of A++, A+, A or A-, which are the four highest ratings 

available, and a minimum of $50 million in Policyholders’ Surplus. It must be noted that West’s cannot 

guarantee the financial solvency of any insurance carrier.   

Financial Strength Ratings 

A.M. Best's Financial Strength Rating (FSR) is an opinion of an insurer's ability to meet its obligations to 

policyholders. Rating Modifiers and Affiliation Codes may also be associated with these ratings. The 

following list outlines our rating scale and associated descriptions. 

 

Secure Vulnerable 

A++, A+ (Superior) B, B- (Fair) 

A, A- (Excellent) C++, C+ (Marginal) 

B++, B+ (Very Good) C, C- (Weak) 

 D (Poor) 

 E (Under Regulatory Supervision) 

 F (In Liquidation) 

 S (Rating Suspended) 

 

Financial Size Categories (FSC)  

To enhance the usefulness of our ratings, A.M. Best assigns each letter rated (A++ through D) 

insurance company a Financial Size Category (FSC). The FSC is designed to provide a convenient 

indicator of the size of a company in terms of its statutory surplus and related accounts.  

Many insurance buyers only want to consider buying insurance coverage from companies that they 

believe have sufficient financial capacity to provide the necessary policy limits to insure their risks. 

Although companies utilize reinsurance to reduce their net retention on the policy limits they 

underwrite, many buyers still feel more comfortable buying from companies perceived to have 

greater financial capacity. 

 

 

FSC 

(in thousands) 

Adjusted Policyholders 

Surplus 

  

FSC 

(in thousands) 

Adjusted 

 Policyholders Surplus 

I Less than 1  IX 250 to 500 

II 1 to 2  X 500 to 750 

III 2 to 5  XI 750 to 1,000 

IV 5 to 10  XII 1,000 to 1,250 

V 10 to 25  XIII 1,250 to 1,500 

VI 25 to 50  XIV 1,500 to 2,000 

VII 50 to 100  XV Greater than 2,000 

VIII 100 to 250    



 

Page 17 

Final Audit Information 
 
 

WHY IS AN AUDIT NECESSARY? 
This policy is issued with an "estimated premium" which requires 

an adjustment after the policy expires. The estimated premium for this 
type of policy is usually based on the amount of your payroll, sales 
or subcontractor cost during the term of the policy. 

 
After the policy expires and the actual amount of the payroll, 

sales or cost can be determined, the estimated premium is adjusted to 
develop the final premium. If the adjusted premium is less than the 
estimated premium, the difference will be refunded. If it is more, you 
will receive a bill for the additional premium. 

 

WHO WILL MAKE THE AUDIT? 
When the policy expires, either a Premium Auditor will make an 

appointment with you to review the records that pertain to your 
company’s payrolls and other exposures covered by your policy(ies) 
with your insurance carrier or a Policyholder's Report will be mailed to 
you for completion. 

 
Premium Auditors are knowledgeable in both accounting and 

insurance and will obtain the necessary information to make the 
premium adjustment with a minimum of Inconvenience to you and your 
staff. 

 

WHAT WILL THE PREMIUM AUDITOR DO? 
The Premium Auditor will examine your books of original entry 

and ledger accounts that pertain to the variable factors on which the 
premium is based. The payroll portion of the audit will normally be 
verified to your quarterly tax reports. Additionally, during the course of 
the audit, the Auditor may also ask some questions about your records 
and personally observe the various operations of your business. 

 

Automated Records 
If your records are automated, or if they will be automated in 

the near future, the Premium Auditor will be pleased to assist you in 
setting up your records to Include Insurance requirements. 

 

Premium Base 
The most common premium bases are total remuneration 

(payroll), gross sales and total subcontractor cost. A rate is applied to 
the premium base to develop the premium. The premium base used is 
determined by the type of policy and by the type of business being 
insured. 

 
 
 

Remuneration Is the total gross earnings of your employees. 
(See ''Overtime" below for further details.) Gross sales is the gross 
amount charged by you for your products, services or rentals. Total 
subcontractor cost is the cost to you of all work you let or sublet. (Cost 
of material and equipment you furnished to your subcontractors may 
be handled differently under workers compensation than general 
liability coverage. Consult with your auditor for further information.) 

 

Overtime 
In most states the penalty portion of overtime payroll, or the 

amount paid in excess of the regular rate of pay, is excluded from 
the total payroll on which the premium is based. 

 
You must, however, maintain your records to show separately, 

by employee and in summary by type of work, the amount of overtime 
paid. 

 
Overtime deductions under workers compensation currently are 

not applicable in the states of Delaware, Pennsylvania, Utah, Nevada 
and to Stevedoring Operations. 

 

Payroll Segregation 
Insurance rates differ by type of work performed. The Premium 

Auditor must place each employee in the proper occupational category 
or insurance classification approved by the state. Since each 
classification has a different premium rate, proper placement is 
important. 

 
By segregating your employee payroll records by type of work, 

you should receive a more prompt and equitable premium adjustment. 

 

Consolidated (Wrap-Up) Insurance Programs 
If you are a contractor involved in a consolidated (wrap-up) 

insurance program, your payroll receipts will not be automatically 
excluded from our audit. Please be sure to contact your agent before you 
begin working under a wrap-up program. If your policies are not 
endorsed properly, payroll/receipts will not be excluded from the audit. 

 

SUBCONTRACTORS·PREMIUM CHARGES 
 

Workers Compensation 
You may be held responsible when a subcontractor's employee 

is injured. Most Workers Compensation laws provide that the general 
or principal contractor shall be responsible for compensation to 
employees of subcontractors in the absence of appropriate 
subcontractors' coverage. 

 
For this reason it is important that each subcontractor you use 

furnish you with certificates of Insurance. Failure to secure a 
subcontractor's certificate of insurance will result in an additional 
premium charge. 

 
The premium auditor will ask to see these certificates of 

insurance as proof that each subcontractor was separately insured. 

 

General Liability 
Your general liability policy may contain subcontractor 

classifications with rates based on operations performed for you by 
adequately insured subcontractors. 

 
If any of your subcontractors do not have proof of adequate 

insurance, we will charge for the subcontractors without adequate 
insurance as if they were your employees. This usually means that a 
higher rate will be charged to you. It is important for you to verify the 
limits of insurance carried by your subcontractors by securing a 
certificate of insurance from each and every one of them. 

 
For rating or audit purposes, your insurance carrier considers 

adequate limits of insurance for your subcontractors to be limits of 
insurance equal to your own limits of insurance. Your agent will be able 
to help you determine subcontractor limits that could protect your assets 
and satisfy underwriting requirements. 



 

Page 18 

  



 

Page 19 

 

 

 

 



 2015-2016 Village of Round Lake 

Coverage Comparison

Commercial Property Section Trident Travelers OneBeacon

Building $23,595,379 $23,584,204 $21,078,150

Business Personal Property $1,983,646 Included in building limit $1,925,869

Blanket property coverage Yes Yes Yes

Property valuation Replacement Cost Replacement Cost Replacement Cost

Property policy deductible $2,500 $2,500 $1,000

Building and BPP limits were automatically increased 3%.

Business Income and Extra Expense $250,000 $500,000 $500,000

Blanket Earthquake $1,000,000 $2,500,000 $1,000,000

EQ deductible $50,000 $50,000 $50,000

Blanket Flood $1,000,000 $2,500,000 * $1,000,000

Flood deductible $50,000 $50,000 $50,000

Water backup of sewers and drains Property limits $50,000 $100,000

Equipment Breakdown coverage Included Included Included

Accounts Receivable $100,000 $100,000 $500,000 Shared limit

Valuable Papers & Records $100,000 $100,000 $500,000 Shared limit

Computer Equipment $666,122 $666,122 $666,122

Building Laws Coverage $100,000 $100,000 $500,000

Terrorism Coverage Included Included Included

* Travelers Flood coverage only applies at the following locations - 400 & 442 Cedar Lake Rd and 332 Railroad Ave.  

* Additional limits can be found under the Property endorsement

Commercial General Liability Section Trident Travelers OneBeacon

General Aggregate $3,000,000 $2,000,000 $2,000,000

Products/Completed Operations  Aggregate $3,000,000 $2,000,000 $2,000,000

Body Injury and Property Damage  each occurrence $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000

Personal & Advertising Injury each occurrence $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000

Damage to premises rented to you $100,000 $500,000 $1,000,000

Failure to Supply - Water Included $1,000,000 $1,000,000

Sewer Backup Liability Included $1,000,000 included

Pollution Liability Included included included

Sexual Abuse Included excluded $1,000,000

1



 2015-2016 Village of Round Lake 

Coverage Comparison

Law Enforcement Liability $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000

Law Enforcement Liability Aggregate $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000

Law Enforcement Liability deductible $2,500 $5,000 $5,000

Public Officials Liability (POL) $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000

POL Aggregate $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000

Public Officials Liability deductible $2,500 $5,000 $5,000

Retroactive Date 12/31/2006 12/31/2006 12/31/2006

Defense costs outside the limit of liability Yes Yes Yes

Employment Practices Liability (EPL) $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000

EPL Aggregate $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000

EPL deductible $10,000 $5,000 $10,000

Retroactive date 12/31/2006 12/31/2006 12/31/2006

Defense costs outside the limit of liability Yes No Yes

Employee Benefits Liability $1million/$1million $1million/$3million $1million/$1million

Employee Benefits deductible $1,000 $1,000 $1,000

Automobile Liability Section Trident Travelers OneBeacon

44 Units were reported

Limit of liability $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000

Physical Damage $1,630,126 $1,630,126 $1,630,126

Hired/Nonowned Liability $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000

Uninsured/Underinsured Motorist (UM/UIM) $100,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000

Medical payments $5,000 $5,000 $5,000

Comprehensive deductible $1,000 $1,000 $1,000

Collision deductible $1,000 $1,000 $1,000

2



 2015-2016 Village of Round Lake 

Coverage Comparison

Crime Section Trident Travelers OneBeacon

Employee Dishonesty $500,000 $500,000 $500,000

Theft, Disappearance and Destruction - Inside $50,000 $50,000 $50,000

Theft, Disappearance and Destruction- Outside $50,000 $50,000 $50,000

Forgery & Alteration $500,000 $500,000 $500,000

Crime deductible $2,500 $2,500/$1,000 $2,500

Inland Marine Section Trident Travelers OneBeacon

Emergency Services Equipment $433,660 Included in Misc. Schedule Included in Misc. Equip limit

Street/Highway Equipment $733,000 $598,792 $733,586

Miscellaneous Equipment (Scheduled) $537,080 $3,434,448 $1,138,528

Unscheduled Equipment $170,374-max $1K/item $170,374-max $1K/item $170,374-max $1K/item

Hired, Leased, Borrowed equipment $100,000 $100,000 $100,000

Inland Marine Deductible $500 $1,000 $500

Inland Marine Equipment valuation Actual Cash Value Actual Cash Value Actual Cash Value

Excess Liability Section Trident Travelers OneBeacon

Limit per occurrence/aggregate $10,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000

Excess Liability deductible $0 $0 $0

General liability covered under excess policy yes yes yes

Automobile liability covered under excess policy yes yes yes

EPLI covered under excess policy yes yes yes

EBL covered under excess policy yes yes yes

POL covered under excess policy yes yes yes

Law Enforcement  under excess policy yes yes yes

Failure to Supply yes no yes

Abuse and Molestation yes no no

Pollution yes no no

Sewer Backup Liability yes no no

3



 2015-2016 Village of Round Lake 

Coverage Comparison

Workers Compensation IPRF Travelers

Employers Liability limit $3,000,000 Declined due to losses

Payroll Breakdown per class code

5506 - Street Maintenance  $365,135

7520 - Waterworks  $132,849

7720 Policemen $2,146,565

8810 Clerical $804,120

9402 Street Cleaning $0

9410 Municipal Employees $184,564

7580 Sewage Disposal $58,613

Public Officials Bonds Liberty Surety First

Village President - Daniel MacGillis $50,000

Village Clerk - Patricia Blauvelt $50,000

Village Administrator - Steven Shields $50,000

Village Finance Officer - Shane Johnson $500,000

Village Treasurer - Shane Johnson $500,000

Deputy Clerk - Martha Koechig $5,000

Fire & Policy Commissioner - Richard Crane $50,000

Fire & Policy Commissioner - Art Weber $50,000

Fire & Policy Commissioner - James Retis $50,000

Cyber Liability (Optional Consideration) Beazley Insurance

Information Security and Privacy Liability $1,000,000

Regulatory Defense and Penalties $250,000

Website Media Content Liability $1,000,000

Policy Aggregate $1,000,000

Crisis Management and Public relations $100,000

Notification costs/aggregate $50,000/$50,000

Legal & Forensic Expenses $100,000

Deductible $10,000/$5,000

* The Cyber Liability premium is subject to a completed Beazley Breach Response App.

4



 2015-2016 Village of Round Lake 

Coverage Comparison

Premium Breakdown

Package Policy (Property, GL , Crime, Inland Marine, Excess) Trident Travelers OneBeacon

$111,932 $101,095 $117,921

* OneBeacon, ICRMT, Travelers, Brit and Glatfelter were asked to provide a competitive

 quotation but declined because they could not compete with Trident's renewal pricing.

Workers Compensation IPRF IPRF IPRF

$90,871 $90,871 $90,871

Public Officials Bonds Liberty Mutual Surety Liberty Mutual Surety Liberty Mutual Surety

$1,672 $1,672 $1,672

Total Estimated Annual Premium Trident/IPRF/Liberty Travelers/IPRF/Liberty OneBeacon/IPRF/Liberty 

$204,475 $193,638 $210,464

Cyber Liability Estimated Premium $7,500*

*Cyber Liability premium is not included in the total estimated annual premium.  

Brit, ICRMT and American Alternative declined indicating they could not compete with Trident's pricing

We are still waiting on a quote from Scottsdale

5



































































































































































L:\Admin Dept\AGENDA ITEM SUMMARIES\11 16 15 MOVE_AIS.docx 

 

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

TITLE: MANAGEMENT’S OVERALL VISION EVALUATION Agenda Item No.  COTW 

 
Executive Summary:

 
Although staff is hopeful annexations will occur in the next few years to increase the property tax base 
and economic development will generate additional sales tax dollars up to the expected level for a Village 
our size, planning must occur now to address the financial issues in the future.  
 
The initiatives in this memorandum will impact Village residents, Village staff, and community partners. 
However, in the end, implementation of this evaluation will result in an improved quality of life in and for 
the Village. 
 

Recommended Action:
 
For Discussion Purposes and Future Action by the Village Board and the Management Team 
 

Committee: - Meeting Date: 11/16/15 

 

Lead Department:  Administration Presenter: Steven J. Shields, Village Administrator
 

 

Item Budgeted:   -  Yes    -  No    x   N/A 

 
If amount requested is over budget, a detailed 
explanation of what account(s) the overage will 
be charged to will be provided in the Executive 
Summary or attached detail. 

Account(s) Budget Expenditure

Item Requested
Y-T-D Actual
Amount Encumbered

Total: $0.00 $0.00

Under
Over -

-
Request is over/under budget:

 



Village of Round Lake 
442 N. Cedar Lake Road Round Lake, IL  60073 

847-546-5400    fax 847-546-5405 

www.eroundlake.com 

 
   
November 12, 2015 

  

To: Mayor and Board of Trustees 

    

From: The Management Team 

     

Subject: Management’s Overall Vision Evaluation (MOVE)  

 

Purpose of the Evaluation: 

 

MOVE has been created to give substantive and comprehensive information about the state of our 

municipality.  It will demonstrate strengths and weaknesses in administration, departments, elected 

officials, personnel, and the community. It will prioritize immediate concerns such as our financial 

forecast along with departmental goals. This will demonstrate where we are today and provide a 

vision for the future and how to get there. 

 

Although staff is hopeful annexations will occur in the next few years to increase the property tax 

base and economic development will generate additional sales tax dollars up to the expected level 

for a Village our size, planning must occur now to address the serious financial distress the Village 

is projected to have.  

 

With such planning a necessity, management has titled this memorandum Management’s Overall 

Vision Evaluation, or the acronym MOVE.  Management felt MOVE was symbolic as we need to 

move now into action.  

 

Financial Information 

 

The forecast shows operating revenues greater then operating expenses through fiscal year end 

2019, however, contributions from the General Fund are needed to support replacement items 

(vehicles, technology, and building), street maintenance, and debt payments that reduce cash each 

year by $1.2 to $1.3 million between fiscal year end 2016 and 2021. The estimated cash from the 

2016 General Fund Financial Forecast is as follows: 
 

 Budget 

 

  Forecast 

  Description 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

       Unreserved Cash 1,395,095  365,864  (856,924) (2,274,988) (3,938,997) (5,509,284) 

Reserve for Operating (30%) 2,087,033  2,166,215  2,249,580  2,331,128  2,408,598  2,488,082  

Reserve for Street Replacement 325,000  325,000  325,000  325,000  325,000  325,000  

Reserve for Replacement Funds 372,983  381,255  389,704  393,610  397,711  342,381  

Reserve for Debt Service 525,000  550,000  575,000  600,000  600,000  500,000  

Restricted Escrow/Seizure Cash 145,000  130,000  115,000  100,000  85,000  70,000  

 

4,850,111  3,918,334  2,797,361  1,474,750  (122,689) (1,783,821) 



MOVE  Memorandum                                  Page 2        

November 12, 2015 

 

As shown by the financial forecast, the Village will not be meeting the 30% reserve for operating 

expenses by fiscal year end 2018 and by fiscal year end 2020 cash is NEGATIVE. 

 

In the past, a reduction of expenses was the driving force behind the operating budget being 

balanced. However, with budgets at minimum levels this option will not work now or in the future. 

The Village has realized past savings through the following: 

 

 Bond refinancing/refunding, approximately seven refundings in the past nine years  

 Staff attrition: 62 full-time (FYE 2008) down to 47 full-time currently 

o Level of services are stagnant 

 Expense reductions: 

o Significant expenses eliminated in all department budgets 

o Salaries were frozen or no step increases given 

o Capital deferred – vehicles, equipment, and building repairs 

 

The financial forecasts in fiscal year end 2011 and 2012 had indications of cash falling short of the 

expected reserve balances. However, with the reduction in expenses and the economy rebounding, 

major revenues increased (income, sales, and use tax), resulting in adequate cash reserves in the 

financial forecast for fiscal year end 2013 and 2014. Starting with the fiscal year end 2015 budget, 

the financial forecast had cash reserves not meeting expected reserves. A number of items 

contributed to the significant decrease of reserves, including: 

 

 Property tax revenues decreased significantly. A large reduction, approximately 1% of 

overall cash available in all funds, in the General Fund extension effective tax levy year 

2011 (received in fiscal year end 2013) was approved by the Village Board. The following 

table shows the amounts not captured since that time: 

 

 
Maximum Actual Amount 

Levy Extension Extension Not 

Year Amount Amount Captured 

    2011 $3,677,729  $3,448,272  ($229,456) 

2012 $3,788,061  $3,422,388  ($365,672) 

2013 $3,852,458  $3,486,069  ($366,388) 

2014 $3,910,244  $3,553,463  ($356,782) 

   

($1,318,299) 

     A $1.1 million one-time transfer to the Motor Fuel Tax and Capital Projects Funds to fund 

street maintenance and reconstruction in fiscal year end 2014 

 The continued annual funding of $325,000 for street replacement starting in fiscal year end 

2015 

 An increase of the debt service transfer from $350,000 annually to over $500,000 annually 

 

 

 



MOVE  Memorandum                                  Page 3        

November 12, 2015 

 

Management believes a positon of “status quo” or “government as usual” will not curtail the deficit 

looming in the future. If all departments reduced overall expenses in the General Fund by a total of 

$500,000, the village would still have operating reserves under the 30% policy by fiscal year end 

2019 of only 26.73%. 

 

Budget 
  

  

Forecast 

  Description 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

       Unreserved Cash 2,066,509  1,475,412  707,544  0  0  0  

Reserve for Operating (30%) 1,957,081  2,031,305  2,109,450  1,947,577  845,157  (144,104) 

Reserve for Street Replacement 325,000  325,000  325,000  325,000  325,000  325,000  

Reserve for Replacement Funds 372,983  381,255  389,704  393,610  397,711  342,381  

Reserve for Debt Service 525,000  550,000  575,000  600,000  600,000  500,000  

Restricted Escrow/Seizure Cash 145,000  130,000  115,000  100,000  85,000  70,000  

Cash Available 5,391,573  4,892,971  4,221,699  3,366,188  2,252,869  1,093,277  

       Reserve for Operating % 30.00% 30.00% 30.00% 26.73% 11.23% (1.85%) 

 

However, the purpose of this memorandum is not to focus solely on the financial implications 

facing the Village in the near future, but to provide the Village Board an evaluation by management 

of the current status of the Village, along with guidance that will position us strategically in the 

future. 

 

Positioning the Village 

 

Over the last nine years there has been turnover in all key positions: two (2) Administrators, (2) 

Chiefs of Police, three (3) Director of Public Works, one (1) Director of Community Development, 

two (2) Office Manager’s (Full-time working Village Clerk’s), one (1) Human Resources 

Coordinator, and one (1) Building Commissioner. In addition, in that same time frame staff has 

experienced little consistency at the Village official level with three (3) Mayors, three (3) Village 

Clerks, and turnover from at least six (6) trustee positions. 

 

In the past development has supported operations, but now permit activity is nonexistent. In fact the 

last annexation and Planned Unit Development was approved in October 2005 and the only major 

retailer in the Village was approved by the Village Board in March 2004, both over ten years ago. 

 

A new culture was created when Mayor MacGillis was elected in 2013. The Village Board became 

cohesive, a business friendly environment started, and forming or mending past relationships was a 

priority. We also started to assemble a new management team, started the Comprehensive Plan 

update, strategically discussed Route 53/120 corridor impacts on the Village, and are working with 

the County to gain a centerline for Cedar Lake Road through the downtown for future development. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



MOVE  Memorandum                                  Page 4        

November 12, 2015 

 

Management Team and Evaluation  

 

The first step in implementing the new culture was assembling a team of professionals with both 

public and private sector experience with the necessary education and leadership skills required to 

run a local government in today’s ever changing environment. In only 16 months, the current 

Village Administrator was promoted from Finance Director, a position that was held for the last 

eight (8) years. A new Finance Director was hired, which lead to the additional title and 

responsibilities as Assistant Village Administrator/Director of Finance. An Accounting Manager 

position was created in the Finance Department and a new Director of Public Works took the helm 

in April 2015. The Chief of Police has been with the Village since April 2010.  

 

The management team in place has the talent to MOVE the Village in the direction of the vision in 

this document. This cohesive team will be the critical component for a successful implementation 

process. We are a service industry and our employees are the most valued resources. Customer 

service is the biggest asset our employees can have. To truly succeed we must have the right people, 

with the right competencies, in the right positions. Our goal is to create an environment where 

employees want to stay. As a result, we should work hard to reward talent, identify employee 

motivators, and set expectations high for the management team and throughout the Village. 

 

For the first time in the last decade the management team met in the same room for open and candid 

discussions. Topics discussed included operations of each department, the Village as a whole, and 

how a local government should operate based on previous experiences. The team was charged with 

the following: 

 

 List of item/projects not getting done 

 Ideas for future endeavors/department vision 

 Wish list of projects, assignments, or other items if we had the financial capabilities 

 Any other items regarding working together for savings, collaboration within the Village or 

with other municipalities, and other such subject matter 

 

Based on the comments made by the management team, a current conditions list by department was 

formulated. The theme of the list is to show the Village Board the current organization of each 

department and make evident the service levels and responsibilities that need to be addressed. The 

current conditions list, by department, is included on Exhibit A, attached after this memo. 

 

MOVE Implementation   

 

There has been much discussion regarding costs and the reduction of reserves. However, to 

effectively implement MOVE money must be invested now in key expenditures/uses. For example, 

new positions will need to be created and costs for consultants and/or studies will have to be started 

to determine the optimum benefits to the village. Based on management’s vision, from a Village-

wide perspective, we found the following to be key initiatives to address NOW in order to set the 

Village up for success in the long term: 

 

 

 



MOVE  Memorandum                                  Page 5        

November 12, 2015 

 

 Implement a Village organizational restructuring 

o Departments restructured based on talent, skill set, and customer service needs 

 Cross train staff members to meet the service needs of the community in a 

more effective manner 

 Explore part-time versus full-time positions 

o Hire a full-time Human Resources Professional 

 Support our most valued assets, our employees, in order to effectively serve 

our residents 

 Knowledge of complex rules and regulations in this area  

o Consider moving all staff and operations to the Public Works/Police facility 

 Centralized customer service 

 Gain staff efficiencies 

 Long-term cost reduction 

 Implement a new pay-for-performance compensation policy 

o Complete and implement a compensation study 

 To remove instability 

 To acknowledge those employees that exceed expectations 

 Based on public and private sector salary data 

o Implement performance standards and goals to be reviewed on an annual basis 

 Implement a downtown TIF area to spur development 

o Contract with consultants to study the feasibility of a TIF 

 Prepare a redevelopment report 

o Work with Metra to move the train station 

 To relieve traffic congestion and improve pedestrian safety  

o Work with the County for the Cedar Lake Road centerline 

 To plan development around the centerline 

o Investigate grants to support the downtown endeavors 

 Maximize economic development 

o New Village Website rollout 

 Powerful communication tool 

o Focus on annexations and building a business base 

 To diversify and strengthen the Village’s tax base. 

o Actively market Village owned sites and other locations that must be developed 

 Should staff and operations move, Village Hall/land available for prime 

downtown development 

 

Management and Village Board Strategic Planning  

 

The intent of the management meetings was to start the discussions of understanding our current 

situation. Although not specifically asked, much of management’s discussions centered around 

questions such as the following: 

 

 What is our Village culture like? 

 What are our strengths and weaknesses? 

 How does and has the economy impacted the Village? 

 What are the core services we offer? 



MOVE  Memorandum                                  Page 6        

November 12, 2015 

 

 How do our customers and demographics impact our services? 

 What opportunities do we have and how best to capitalize with our resources? 

 

As part of the overall evaluation, management understood our current situation, discussed what 

needs to be implemented now, and on where management wants their departments to be in the 

future, and in general, the Village. The intent of the discussions was to allow the management team 

to generate ideas that would benefit the Village, save the Village money, or move the Village into 

position to be a leader in the industry.  

 

Management also identified an extensive list that must be prioritized via a partnership between the 

management team, Village Board, and our residents, defined by a strategic plan. Many communities 

have already implemented and continue to refine such plans and usually rely on hiring professionals 

in this field to help moderate and drive discussions of this importance.  

 

Realizing the need of establishing a sound base for future financial and non-financial decision-

making, management embarked on this exercise to create a formalized internal evaluation. As stated 

previously, a strategic vision is essential because it helps determine where an organization wants to 

go, how it will get there, and how it will measure progress towards that goal.  

 

A strategic plan also defines organizational values, establishes a mission, and set goals to achieve.  

Then the next step would be to prepare objectives on how to attain such standards. These objectives 

will need to be measured, targets established, along with a process to review, evaluate, and refine. 

Again, this will need to be a collaborative transparent effort with both the management team and the 

Village Board. 

 

Management will carry out the course, but the Village Board needs to be involved in defining the 

direction and making decisions on allocating its resources to pursue this vision, including its capital 

and people. Rather than making ad‐hoc decisions on an issue‐by‐issue basis, a strategic plan assists 

and guides the Village in determining its future as a community and government and provides a 

road map to its future. 

 

MOVE to Strategic Planning 

 

 Management has made an assessment of the Village’s current situation 

 Management has identified an assortment of options to improve all facets of Village 

operations 

 Define and refine, based on additional Village Board discussions: 

o A strategic planning initiative that integrates operational, financial, and long-term 

goals 

o Create a mission statement for the Village of Round Lake. At the most essential 

level, a mission statement defines why an organization exists, or its purpose 

o Establishment of values, which are what the Village actions and decisions are guided 

by – such items include customer focused, leadership, progressive, respect, integrity, 

and team orientated 

o Generate a vision statement that will help to illustrate the physical and social 

characteristics most important in the Village’s landscape 



MOVE  Memorandum                                  Page 7        

November 12, 2015 

 

o Institute goals - to truly become actionable, a vision statement needs to be turned into 

actionable goals 

o Setup strategies - a way to obtain the goal 

o Formulate action plans - the detailed steps to accomplish the goals 

 

The Comprehensive Plan, which will be presented to the Village Board in the near future, will serve 

as a foundation for the objectives and planning approaches of a strategic plan. 

 

Possible Barriers to Success 

 

There may be several obstacles to overcome when implementing this new vision, as follows: 

 

 All departments need to re-think government not as usual and focus on a customer service 

core business model 

 Staff re-organization: there is much inefficiency inherited from past practices that needs to 

be remedied, staff will be fearful and stressed 

 Many hours will need to be spent educating all those involved supporting the new culture for 

the Village 

 Available capital resources  

 

Concluding Remarks 

 

This vision will challenge us to achieve: 

 

 A stable financial condition by using our resources to balance our needs 

 Foster an attractive and vital economic climate for people to shop and dine where they live  

 A plan to maintain the Village’s sound infrastructure, which will inspire community 

confidence 

 Create a sense of community by adding value, ownership and well‐being, adding to civic 

pride 

 A government that has a clear vision, with a preeminent leadership, offering outstanding 

customer service 

 

Now is the time to run the Village like a business, following an entrepreneurial approach - no longer 

can we govern as usual. Knowing the challenges that are facing us, changes are necessary that will 

require difficult, but positive actions, with possible staff changes, attitude changes, and in general, 

running the Village in a non-traditional government approach.  

 

The initiatives in this memorandum will impact Village residents, Village staff, and community 

partners. However, in the end, implementation of this evaluation will result in an improved quality 

of life in and for the Village. 

 

Management believes that we must show employees that the Village is not going to settle for 

Government As Usual.  We need to hold people accountable, pay competitive salaries, watch 

undisciplined spending, stop favoritism, and have the management team handle all of the day-to-day 

operations and decisions. The vision change in this document will result in unparalleled success.  





Current Conditions                                 Exhibit A Page 1        

November 12, 2015 

 

Current Conditions - Exhibit A 

Department Areas 
 

 

Public Works   

 

The Public Works Department provides a broad base of services to the community in a prompt, 

courteous, safe, efficient, and cost-effective manner. The Public Works Department strives to plan, 

design, build, maintain, and operate public infrastructure in a sustainable manner that enhances the 

community and provides the Village with a quality foundation for generations to come. The primary 

responsibilities of the Public Works Department include:  

 

 Water delivery and maintenance of the water system 

 Sanitary sewer conveyance and maintenance of the sanitary sewer system 

 Storm water conveyance and maintenance of the storm water system 

 Maintenance of streets, storm drains, and street lighting 

 Maintenance of Village grounds and facilities  

 Maintenance of trees located within the public rights-of-way 

 Engineering and contract administration of public improvements 

 Review of design and construction of public development  

 Environmental compliance and oversight  

 Snow and ice mitigation operations 

 

Number of Positions: Full-time: 10 Part-time: 0 Seasonal: 6 

 

Current organizational Chart: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Current Conditions                                 Exhibit A Page 2        

November 12, 2015 

 

General Fund Budget and Five-Year Financial Forecast 

 

 

Budget     Forecast     

Category 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Payroll Expenses $349,500  $360,051  $375,121  $390,685  $407,061  $423,422  

Taxes, Pensions & Insurance $122,000  $129,395  $139,439  $150,831  $161,596  $173,223  

Personnel Related $7,651  $7,766  $7,882  $8,000  $8,120  $8,242  

Professional Services $20,000  $20,300  $20,605  $20,914  $21,227  $21,546  

Commodities $152,125  $148,196  $148,319  $148,444  $148,571  $148,699  

Contractual Services $33,050  $33,536  $34,029  $34,530  $35,038  $35,554  

Building & Grounds $71,326  $72,396  $73,482  $74,584  $75,703  $76,838  

Capital Outlay $42,267  $1,776  $1,803  $1,830  $1,857  $1,885  

Utilities $94,600  $94,707  $94,815  $94,924  $95,036  $95,149  

Vehicles & Equipment $73,030  $74,385  $75,768  $77,177  $78,615  $80,081  

Infrastructure Improvements $0  $20,000  $0  $0  $0  $0  

Technology $3,000  $3,000  $3,000  $3,000  $3,000  $3,000  

Infrastructure Maintenance $30,000  $30,300  $30,605  $30,914  $31,227  $31,546  

Subtotal $998,549  $995,808  $1,004,867  $1,035,833  $1,067,052  $1,099,186  

Water & Sewer Fund** $5,490,513  $5,249,052  $6,463,447  $4,299,480  $4,180,248  $4,278,935  

Total $6,489,062  $6,244,860  $7,468,314  $5,335,313  $5,247,300  $5,378,121  

 

** - The Water and Sewer Fund is also included as it contains Public Works responsibilities. 

 

Public Works: Service levels that need to be addressed: 

   

Dead tree removal    Tree trimming  

  Jetting sanitary sewers    Televising sanitary sewers 

  Jetting storm sewers    FOG inspections 

Exercise water valves     Inspect/repair lift station pumps   

  Replace broken water valves   Maintain ditches 

  Maintain shoulder gravel   Update utility atlases 

Cleaning storm inlets & catch basins  Employee training  

Public Works: Responsibilities that need to be addressed: 

 

Clean lift stations    Fix broken B-Boxes  

Fire hydrant flushing and repair  Pavement patching 

Sign post replacements   Street sign replacements and upgrades 

Maintenance of buildings    Street light conversions to LED fixtures 

Maintenance Village property   Garbage pick-up throughout the Village 

Roadway striping    Vehicle and equipment maintenance 

Sidewalk replacements/trip hazard removal 

 

 
 



Current Conditions                                 Exhibit A Page 3        

November 12, 2015 

 

Building Department 

 

The Building Department strives to ensure public safety, health, and welfare of all Village residents 

and the business community. The primary responsibilities of the Building Department include: 

 Enforcement of all building and zoning codes 

 Issuance of building permits, conducting inspections, plan reviews 

 Monitoring all phases of construction and development within the Village 

 

Number of Positions: Full-time: 3 Part-time: 0 Seasonal: 0 

 

Current organizational Chart: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

General Fund Budget and Five-Year Financial Forecast 

 

 

Budget     Forecast     

Category 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Payroll Expenses $176,500  $182,500  $188,000  $193,500  $199,500  $205,500  

Taxes, Pensions, & Insurance $64,570  $69,210  $73,734  $78,614  $83,924  $89,914  

Personnel Related $2,245  $2,279  $2,313  $2,348  $2,383  $2,419  

Professional Services $19,800  $20,086  $20,376  $20,670  $20,969  $21,272  

Commodities $1,400  $1,421  $1,442  $1,464  $1,486  $1,508  

Contractual Services $250  $250  $250  $250  $250  $250  

Utilities $1,800  $1,827  $1,854  $1,882  $1,910  $1,939  

Vehicles & Equipment $6,300  $6,440  $6,582  $6,728  $6,878  $7,030  

Technology $1,778  $1,800  $1,800  $1,800  $1,800  $1,800  

Total $274,643  $285,812  $296,351  $307,256  $319,099  $331,632  

 

Building Department: Service levels that need to be addressed: 

  

 Village and building codes changes 

 Permit fee changes   

 Policy changes 

Building Department: Responsibilities that need to be addressed: 

 

 Proactive code enforcement vs reactive  



Current Conditions                                 Exhibit A Page 4        

November 12, 2015 

 

Administration 

 

The Village Administrator serves as the Chief Administrative Officer of the Village and is 

responsible to the Village President and the Board of Trustees for the management and operation of 

all departments of the Village. The primary responsibilities of the Administration Department 

include:  

 Implementing and monitoring Village Board directives and programs 

 Preparing the annual budget on behalf of all departments 

 Compiling the agendas for the Committee of the Whole and the Board of Trustee meetings 

 Economic Development 

 Human Resources 

 Information Technology 

 Business and liquor licensing 

 Freedom of Information requests 

Included under Administration is finance operations comprised of financial management, 

accounting, and customer service. Responsibilities include: 

 Village’s annual audit, budget, and tax levy  

 Cash management and investing of Village funds 

 Capital planning 

 Debt administration 

 Tax administration 

 Payroll 

 Accounts payable 

 Utility billing  

 Risk Management 

 Benefits Administration 

 

Number of Positions: Full-time: 6 Part-time: 1 Seasonal: 0 

 

Current organizational Chart: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Current Conditions                                 Exhibit A Page 5        

November 12, 2015 

 

General Fund Budget and Five-Year Financial Forecast 

 

 

Budget     Forecast     

Category 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Payroll Expenses $349,285  $364,871  $379,456  $392,547  $405,762  $419,585  

Taxes, Pensions & Insurance $95,925  $102,480  $109,364  $116,409  $123,944  $132,101  

Personnel Related $27,100  $27,501  $27,907  $28,320  $28,738  $29,163  

Professional Services $187,272  $159,369  $161,506  $163,685  $165,906  $168,170  

Commodities $19,200  $18,876  $19,046  $19,219  $19,395  $19,574  

Contractual Services $1,165,171  $1,200,520  $1,239,474  $1,280,735  $1,324,503  $1,370,996  

Miscellaneous $36,295  $33,974  $34,296  $34,623  $34,955  $35,292  

Building & Grounds $25,159  $23,036  $23,382  $23,733  $24,089  $24,450  

Capital Outlay $6,485  $6,582  $6,681  $6,781  $6,883  $6,986  

Utilities $14,000  $14,203  $14,408  $14,617  $14,828  $15,043  

Technology $102,551  $60,250  $60,250  $60,250  $60,250  $60,250  

Total $2,028,443  $2,011,662  $2,075,771  $2,140,919  $2,209,253  $2,281,610  

 

 

Administration: Service levels that need to be addressed: 

 

Banking RFP      Banners - reestablish program 

Business license renewal process changes  Comparable community survey 

Contracts data base     Collection agencies 

Demolition/reconstruction of certain property Fee analysis 

Economic development incentive package  Escrow account review 

Entertainment licenses/process   Financial software (new) 

Fixed asset inventory, including infrastructure Garbage fee analysis 

Home occupancies process & procedures  Motor fuel tax audit (IDOT) 

MSI rollout - other departments   Park & Park land donation process 

Recaptures: amounts paid & outstanding   Resolution & Ordinance database 

Review and document internal controls  Unclaimed property process 

Standard forms/forms review    Utility billing audit - Lake County 

W-9 vendor project      Subdivision acceptance database 

Water/sewer rate survey     Village code review 

TIF: downtown study & redevelopment plan  Water billing outsourcing - RFP 

Water/sewer code revisions     Police Pension state audit comments 

Outsource police pension financial activity  Prepare a CAFR 

Purchasing policy review & PO's    Revamp budget sheets/budget process 

Rental licenses/crime free housing policies 

 

 

 

 

 



Current Conditions                                 Exhibit A Page 6        

November 12, 2015 

 

Human Resources Items 

 

Affordable Care Act impact/issues   Compensation study/survey 

Employee policy manual updates   Job description updates/changes 

Risk management pools & other options  Safety manual 

Reestablish safety committee    Merit plans 

Staff evaluation process/new forms    Training classes/database 

Cross training programs    Wellness programs/health assessments 

Payroll: emergency contacts update    Newsletter 

Payroll: W-4 update      ROTHS/deferred comp plan research 

Paid time-off plans (PTO)/research    FMLA training 

Risk management inventory issues 

Administration: Responsibilities that need to be addressed: 

 

In general, Administration needs to focus on executive level operations, such as capital planning, 

budget and other Village-wide initiates. It is extremely difficult to focus on “bigger picture” items 

when there are several key areas (Finance, Information Technology, Human Resources, Zoning, 

Economic Development, Marketing) concentrated all in one Department.  

 

Police Department 

 

The Police Department strives to protect and care for the well-being of our community while 

providing excellence in police service. The Police Department is committed to the values of 

integrity, fairness, competency and professionalism through positive and meaningful police-citizen 

interactions and partnerships; these interactions and partnerships preserve the peace and safety of 

the Village of Round Lake, making the Village a very desirable place to live, work, and visit. 

 

The primary responsibilities of the Police Department include:  

 

    Protecting and serving the residents of the Village of Round Lake 

    Planning and budgeting of the department 

    Improving the Department’s response to domestic violence 

    Facilitating and coordinating Law Enforcement services to the community 

    Planning police coverage 

    Addressing legal and legislative matters 

    Administering labor agreements 

    Providing a liaison to the news media 

 

Under the direction of the Chief of Police, the Police Department functions through two Divisions, 

Administration and Operations.  Each Division is commanded by a Department Commander. 

 

The Administration Division includes the records department, procurement, and professional 

standards, while the Operations Division of the Police Department includes the patrol and 

investigative operations. 



Current Conditions                                 Exhibit A Page 7        

November 12, 2015 

 

Number of Positions: Full-time: 28 Part-time: 3 Seasonal: 0 

 

Current organizational Chart: 

 

 

 

Note:  The 12 officer positions above does not include one vacant officer position. 

 

 

General Fund Budget and Five-Year Financial Forecast 

 

 

Budget     Forecast     

Category 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Payroll Expenses $2,323,683  $2,427,693  $2,537,248  $2,647,223  $2,758,098  $2,858,825  

Taxes, Pensions & Insurance $484,400  $517,773  $557,535  $599,825  $645,478  $694,473  

Personnel Related $106,130  $102,616  $104,028  $105,461  $106,915  $108,391  

Professional Services $61,000  $61,765  $62,541  $63,330  $64,130  $64,941  

Commodities $32,246  $32,730  $33,221  $33,719  $34,225  $34,738  

Contractual Services $306,822  $306,361  $310,956  $323,121  $320,468  $325,275  

Miscellaneous Expenses $18,995  $12,536  $12,602  $12,670  $12,738  $12,808  

Building & Grounds $21,403  $21,724  $22,050  $22,381  $22,716  $23,057  

Capital Outlay $14,637  $9,782  $9,928  $10,077  $10,228  $10,382  

Utilities $10,160  $10,305  $10,452  $10,601  $10,753  $10,907  

Vehicles & Equipment $127,500  $130,288  $133,139  $136,055  $139,038  $142,090  

Technology $66,252  $49,924  $50,027  $50,131  $50,237  $30,345  

 Total $3,573,228  $3,683,495  $3,843,727  $4,014,593  $4,175,023  $4,316,231  

 

 

 

 

 



Current Conditions                                 Exhibit A Page 8        

November 12, 2015 

 

The function of the Police Department today is largely reactive. We answer the calls that we are 

summoned to through 911 calls and we have very limited ability to address other needs and 

requests. Knowing the expectations of the Village and the Village Board we can begin to set 

personnel staffing levels that are consistent with that goal. At our current staffing levels we meet 

our reactionary expectations, but fall far short in our: 

 

 Ability to train personnel effectively and efficiently for growth, such as 

Officer Safety     Active Shooter 

On Scene Evidence Processing Beat Integrity 

Policy discussions   EMA, FEMA and NIMS  

 We are primarily a reactive, rather than a proactive police department 

o Being reactive as we are, restricts the ability to devote adequate slots of time, 

manpower and resources that can be redirected to explore areas of the village to;  

 Gauge if an area is appropriate for the use that the area is currently designed 

for 

 Difficulties faced at the schools concerning proper traffic flows that need 

engineering work, commitments by the school district and the Village to 

solve the problem and avoid future design errors whenever possible by 

learning from age old mistakes gone ignored 

 Downtown bar problems 

 Reoccurring traffic complaints 

 

Our efforts could lead to the available data to conclude what areas of the Village truly needs 

attention and perhaps future enforcement, engineering, and environmental work to improve 

situations within in the Village that just cannot be addressed today. Other items also include: 

 

 Manage alarm billing properly 

 Manage parking citation collection adequately 

 Truck Enforcement 

 

Crime Prevention Opportunities including: 

 

Youth Programs     All types of Citizen Police Academies 

Bike Patrol      Community Policing 

Neighborhood Watch     Evidence Custodian 

Training Coordinator     Gang Enforcement 

Drug Enforcement     Back ground Investigations 

Department Meetings     Grant Exploration 

Minor Community Events    Permanent Patrol Beats 

Update equipment regularly     Crime Prevention activities 

Village Ordinance Violation Enforcement  Traffic Safety 

Building and Home inspections   K-9 Unit 

Address building & grounds needs regularly   

Regular & expedient Village Ordinance reviews/updates 

Adjustments to job descriptions, evaluations, department policy and village personnel 

manual updates (HR position) 


	Agenda
	2.1 Minutes of 11/2/15
	Proposed Tax Levy
	Risk Management Proposals
	Pavement Management Report Acceptance
	Route 53/120 Land Use Plan Summary
	Untitled
	Management's Overall Vision Evaluation

